" GENERAL AGREEMENT ON - - Resmictp
. . ADP/M/19
7 August 1987

TARIFFS AND TRADE . ) | Special D:lsi:_ri.butio::x

Committee on Anti-Dumping Fractices Originsl: English’

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
S JUNE 1987

Chairman: Mr. P.S. Randhawa (India)

1. The Committee met on 5 June 1987,

2. The Chairmaa drew the Committee's attention to a request by the
People's Republic of China to be represented in the Committee. This
request had been made in a communication from the People's Republic to the
Director-General of GATT ir October 1986. The relevant part of this
communication read as follows:

“China has formally requested for resuming its membership in GATT
and 1s ready to engage in negotiations on this subject. Thereafter
China was also invited to participate in the new round of Muitilateral
Trade Negotiations. As the Codes on Non-Tariff Measures reached
during the Tokyo Round will be inevitably touched upon during the
negotiations there 1s a need for China to keep herself better informed
of the on-going discussions on these Codes, so as to facilitate her te
formulate her position on them in the course of negotiationms.
Taerefore, China wishes to be represented in the meetings of the
Committee om Technical Barriers to Trade, the Committee on Import
Licensing, the Committee on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures, the
Committee on Anti-Dumping Practices, the Committee on Customs
Valuation and the Committee on Government Procurement. The
Director-General 1is kindly requested to refer the matter to the
Chairmen of the above-mentioned Committees respectively for their

.. consideration and their positive responses in this respect w:lll le
.highly apprecisted."

1 In view of the fact that the People's Republic of China had formally
infitmed the CONTRACTING PARTIES of its intention to negotiate the terms of
its status as a contracting party and that it was a participant in the
Urugiiay Round, th2 Chairman proposed that the Committee agree to grant
observer status to the People's Republic of China or the same conditions as
those applied to other observers (see document ADP/M/2, page 12).

3. " The Ccumittee welcomed the People's Republic of Ghina as an observer.

87-1218




ADP/M/19
Page 2

4. The Committee elected Hr, P.S. Randhawa (India) as Chairman. and
Mr. A. Sivertsen (Norway) as Vice~-Chairman. .

5. The Committee adopted the following agenda:
A. Adherence to cf acceptance of the Agreement by other countries

B. Examination of national legislation and implementing regulations
(ADP/1 and addenda)

(1) Japan (ADP/1/Add.8/Suppl.l)

(11)  Brazil (ADP/1/Add.26)

(111) EEC (ADP/1/Add.1/Suppl.4) B
(iv) Korea (ADP/1/Add.13/Rev.l and ADP/W/135 and 137)

(v) Pakistan (ADP/1/Add.24)

(vi) India (ADP/1/Add.25 and Corr.l)

(vii) Sweden (ADP/1/Add.2/Suppl.l)

(viii) Legislation of other parties

C. Semi-annual reports of anti~dumping actions taken within the
period 1 July-31 December 1986 (ADP/32 and addenda)

D. Reports on all preliminary or final anti~dumping actions
(ADP/W/134, 136, 141, 142 and 143)

E. Report of tﬁe Ad-Hoc Group cn the Tmplementation of the
Anti-Dumping Code

(i) Draft recommendation on input dumping (ADP/W/83/Rev.2)
(i1) Report by the Chairman of the work of the Group
F. Other business

(1) United States - Anti-dumping duty Investigation of fresh
cut flowers from various countries

(11) United States - Review and revocation of outstanding
anti—dumping measures

(i1i) Semimar on anti-dumping procedures held in Belgrade

(iv) Uruguay Reound Negotlating Group on MTN Agreements and
Arrangement - Proposal submitted by Korea




ADP/M/19
Page 3

A. Adherence to or acceptance of the Agreement by other countries

6. The Chairman said that since the last meeting of the Committee no
other countries had accepted or adhered to the Agreement. The Committee
took note of a communication from Mexico in whichlit announced Iits
intention to accept the Agreement (document ADP/33).

7. The Chairman recalled that at its meeting in October 1986 the
Committee iiad taken note cf a communication in which New Zealand announced
that it would accept the Agreement in the near future (ADP/28). The
observer for New Zealand confirmed his Government's wish to accept the
Agreement and said “that the process of adapting the anti-dumping
legislation in conformity with the Agreement had been largely completed.

B. Examination of national legislation and implementing regulations
(ADP/1 and addenda) .

(i) Japan (Guidelines for the conduct of anti-dumping and
countervailing duty investigations, document ADP/1/Add.8/Suppl.l)

8. The Chairman said the anti-dumping legislation of Japan (Article 9 of
the Customs Tariff Law and the related Cabinet Order) had been circulated
in July 1980 and had been considered by the Committee at its meeting held
in October 1980 (see ADP/M/3, paragraph 65). Questions on the Japanese
legislation had also been raised at subsequent meetings. In December 1986
the Japanese Government had adopted Guidelines for the conduct of
anti-dumping and countervailing duty investigations which had been
circulated in ADP/1/Add.8/Suppl.l

9. The representative of Japar said the Guldelines supplemented the
provisions of Article 5 of the Japanese Customs Tariff Law and the related
Cabinet Order. The Guidelines were intended to provide more transparency
and clarity in the application of anti-dumping duties. In establishing
these Guidelines the Japanese Gevernment had taken into consideration the
provisions of the Agreement but also the anti-dumping laws and regulations
of other parties and he therefore believed that the Guidelines were fully
consistent with Japan's international obligationms.

10, The representative of Romania considered that paragraph 10 of the
Guidelines, which provided that Article 15 of the Agreement on Subsidies
and Countervailing Measures would apply im the case of imports from
state-controlled-economy countries, was not consistent with the General
Agreement and the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of the General
Agreement. In his view it was not appropriate to use in anti-dumping
procedures a provision of an agreement of which the exporting country
concerned was not a party. Secondly, while the second Supplementary
Provision to paragraph 1 of Article VI in Annex I to the General Agreement

lSee also document ADP/33/Add.1




ADP/M/19
Page 4

recognized that in the case of imports from a country which had a complete
or substantially complete monopoly of its trade and where all domestic
prices were fixed by the state, the normal method to determine the
existence of dumping might not always be appropriate, this Supplementary
Provision did not provide any justification for an a priori substitution of
an altermative for the general method to determine the existence of
dumping.

11. The representative of Canada said hie delegation had submitted written
questions on the Guidelines (see ADP/W/147). On paragraph 8(2) of the
Guidelines, according to which the comparison between the export price and
the normal value should be made, in prirciple, at the same level of trade,
normally at the ex-factory level, and in respect of sales made at as nearly
as possible tue same time, he wondered what was meant by the terms "in
principle"” and “normally".

12, The representative of Japan said that paragraph 10 of the Guidelines
was consistent with Article 15 of the Agreement on Subsidies and
Countervailing Measures. In resp:-z= to the question put by the
representative of Canada he sald paragraph 8(2) was intended to implerent
the relevant provisions of Article 2 of the Agreement,

13. The representative of Czechoslovakia said he fully agreed with the
comments made by the representative of Romania on paragraph 10 of the
Guidelines,

14, The representative of the EEC sald his delegation had no difficulties
with paragraph 10 of the Guidelines which reflected an approach which had
also been adopted by other countries. Regarding paragraph 1(2) cof the
Guidelines, which listed a number of categories of persons who were
considered to have an interest in an industry in Japan, ke wondered why the
word "usually” had been used in the first sentence of this paragraph; this
word suggested that in the view of the Japanese Government persons other
than those mentioned in this paragraph could also qualify as Interested
persons,

15, With respect to paragraph 8(2) of the Guidelines and the statement
made on this paragraph by the representative of Japan, the represeantative
of Canada pointed out that the term "in principle" did not appear im the
velevant provision in the Agreement (Article 2:6).

16. The representative of Australia saild his delegaticn needed more time
to study the Guidelines and wished ¢o have an opportunity to revert to
these Guidelines at the next meeting of the Committee.

17. The representative of the EEC shared the concern expressed by the
delegation of Csnada regarding the term "in principle" in paragraph 8(2).
His delegation had submitted additioral questions in writips on the
Guidelines (document ADP/W/148).




ADP/M/19
Page 5

18, The representative of the United States said that paragraph 1(2) of
the Guidelines appeared to permit Wany person who has an interest in an
industry in Japan” to apply for anti-dumping dutiles, even though
Article 5:1 of the Agreement reguired that a petition be brought "by or on
behalf of" a domestic industry. She wondered what the phrase “a percon
who has an interest in an Industry” meant and how the Japanese Government
intended to adhere to the requirement of the Agreement in this area (see
also document ADP/W/150). She further imdicated that her delegation
wished to have an opportunity to study the Guidelines in greater detail and
to make additional observations at the next meeting.

19. The Chairman said the Committee would revert to the Japanese
Guidelines at its next regular meeting, He invited interested parties to
submit questions in writing by 3 July 1987 and requested the Japanese
delegation to reply in writing by 10 October 1987.

(11) Brazil (Decree No. 93.941 of 16 January 1987, document:
ADP/1/4dd.26)

20. The Committee had before it Decree No. 93.941 of 16 January 1987,
promulgating the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of the General
Agreement on Tariffs and Trade. The representative of Brazill explained
that as.a result of this Decree the Agreement was now applicable in Brazil
as domestic law, Article 3 of this Decree authorized the Braziliamn
Customs Policy Commission to issue complementary rules for the application
of the Agreement. Such complementary rules had been approved by the
Customs Policy Commission on 14 May 1987; on 2 June 1987 these rules had
been published in the Didrio Oficial. The complementary rules would be
notified to the Committee as soon as possible,

2l. The Committee took note of the statement by the representative of
' Brazil and agreed to revert to the anti-dumping legislation of Brazil when
it had received the text of the complementary rules.

(111) EEC (Council Regulation No. 2336/86 of 24 July 1986 concerning
the existing anti-dumping duties applicable to imports from
. third countries into Spain and  Portugal, and Commission notice
concerning the reimbursement of anti-dumping duties, document
ADP/l/Add 1/Suppl.4}

22. The representative of the EEC said Regulation 2336/86 dealt with a
technical problem encountered by the EEC authorities after the accession of
Spain and Portugal to the European Communities. He recalled that under
the anti-dumping law of the EEC anti~dumping dutles were fixed at a level
necessary to eliminate the injury to a domestic industry caused by dumped
imports. -~ This level was often lower than the margin of dumping. iIn
calevlating the amount of duty necessary to elimipate the imjury, account
had to be taken of the tariff duties on the imports in question provided
for by the Cormon Cuscoms Tariff. Since Spain and Portugal would”
progressively align their customs tariff rates with the Common Customs
Tariff and since the existing tariff rates in 3pain and Portugal were often




ADP/M/19 \ e
Page 6 -

higher than those provided for in the Common Customs Tariff, a mechanism
had to be designed to take into account this difference and to adiust the
amount of the anti-dumping dutiles after the extension of these duties to
imports inte Spain and Portugal, To this end Regulation 2336/86
established the principle that where the Spanish and Portuguese tariff
rates were higher than those of the Common Customs Tariff this difference
would be deducted from the anti-dumping duty.

23. No comments were made or questicns ralsed regarding Council Regulation
2336/86; with respect to the Commission notice on the procedure for the
reimbursement of anti-dumping duties, the representative of Japan and the
United States Indicated they needed more time to study this notice and
wished to have the opportunity to revert to it at the next meeting.

24, The representative of Czechoslovakia said that while he had no
speciiic comments to make on the Council Regulation and the Commission
Notice circulated in document ADP/1/Add.1/Suppl.4, he wished to express the
concern of his authorities about certain aspects of the anti-dumping
practice of the EEC, His Government had been told by exporters that in
some cases they had not been informed in due time of developments in
anti-dumping investigations. This practice was not in conformity with the
Agreement. Furthermore, he referred to a proposal submitted by the
Commission to the Council regarding an amendment of Council Regulation
2176/84 to extend the scope of application of anti-dumping duties to
imports of spare parts. He understood that this proposal had not yet been
approved and that i1t therefore was not subject to a requirement of
notification to the Committee. Nevertheless, he considered that, if
approved, this proposal would constitute a clear violation of the Agreement
because it was inconsietent with the definition of "like product" in the
Agreement., Changes such as those contained in the Commission's proposal
should be discussed and agreed at the multilateral level, either in the
Committee or in the Uruguay Round Negotiating Group on GATIT Articles.

25. The vepresentative of Japan shared the concern voiced by the
representative of Czechoslovakia regarding the ' roposed amendment of
Regulation 2176/84. This proposal went beyond what was necessary to deal
with the problem of the circumvention of anti-dumping duties on a product-
through the importation of components of that product. Furthermore, under
_this proposal anti-dumping duties would be applied in a discriminatory
“manner to foreign affiliated local assembly plants. In addition to the
inconeistency of the proposal with the Agreement he also pointed to the
negative effect the proposal would have on foreign ijnvestment. He hoped
the EEC authorities would reconsider this proposal.

26. The representative of the EEC disagreed with the allegation of the
representative of Czechoslovakia that in EEC anti-dumping investigations
exporters were not sufficiently iaformed. The EFC complied with all
relevant provisions of :he Agreement and had always insisted on full
transparency in all anti-dumping investigations.  When an anti-dumping
ipvestigation was opened, a formal notice was published in the Official -
Journal, -the complaint was sent to the exporters concerned, the embassies

N

7!




A

~  ADP/M/19
0 _ 5 ' ' Page 7

N

" of the countries of the exporters in question were informed and a period of
thirty or thirty-seven days was given: to the exporters to defend their
interests. In the course of the investigation lengthy and detailed
discussions took place with the exporters and, prior to the imposition of
definitive measures, a disclosure conference took place at which the
exporter was informed of the results of the investigation. The exporters
then had & last opportunity to make further comments provided they cbserved
the deadline fixed by the Commission for the submission of comments.

27. In response to the comments made by the representatives of
Czechoslovakia and Japan on the proposed amendment to6 Regulation 2176/84,
the representative of the EEC said the circumvention of anti-dumping duties
on a finished product through the importation and assembly of components of
that product was a sericus problem for the EEC. Other parties had
experienced the same problem and had taken measures to solve it. He
pointed out that the proposal submitted to the Council by the Commission
defined in a precise manner the situation of eircumvention which would lead
to the application of anti~dumping duties to products assembled from
imported components. Acccszding to this proposal a circumvention would be
considered to have occurred where (a) assembly operations were carried out
by a party which was related to any of the manufacturers whose exporters of
the like product were subject to en anti-dumping duty; (b) the assembly
operation was started or substantially increased after the opening of the
anti-dumping investigation, and (c) the value of the parts used in the
assembly operation and orgenization im the country of exportation of the
product subject to the anti-dumping duty exceeded the value of all other
parte used in that operation by a specific percentage. As soon as the
Council would have taken a decision on this propesal the EEC weould inform
the Committee thereof.

28. The representative of Japan sald the Committee should revert to this
matter when it had the definitive version of the proposed amendment before
it. He reiterated his concern regarding the present version of the
proposal which in his view went beyond what was necessary to deal with the
problem of circumvention of anti-dumping duties through the importation and
assembiy of components.

29, With respect to the question of the information provided to exporters
. in EEC anti-dumping investigations, the representative of Czechoslovzkia
said he had not wanted to suggest that lack of sufficient information was a
geuetql characteristic of the EEC anti-dumping practice; he had only
wanted to draw the attention to the fact that im/ ‘we cases involving
exporters from Czechoslovakia insufficient information had been provided.
Regarding the proposal te amend Regulation 2176/84 he reitevated his view
that, if adopted, thils proposal would be a violation of the Agreement.

30. The representative of Hong Kong said it was importamt that any
solution to the problem of the circumvention of anti-dumping duties through
the importation and assembly of components should take into account two
important requirements of the Agreement.  Firstly, the requirement should
be observed that a comparison be made between iike products. Secondly,




ADP/M/19
Page 8

account had to be taken of the requiremenit that the existence of injury be
determined before anti-dumping measures could be imposed on imports of a
product.

31. The vepresentative of Singapore said she shared the concern expressed
by other delegations with regard to the proposed amendment of
Regulation 2176/b4. ,
32, The Commiitae took note of the concerns expressed by some delegations
regarding the proposed amendment to Regulation 2176/84 and agreed to revert
to this matter when the amendment had been adopted by the EEC Council.

33. The Chairman concluded by saying that the Committee would revert to
the Commission Notice concerning procedures for the reimbursement of
anti-dumping duties at its next meeting.

{iv) Koieca (Articl: 4 of the Customs Act and Article 4 of the
Presidential Decree of the Customs Act, document
ADP/1/Add.13/Rev.1)

34, The Chairman recalled that the Committee had begun its examination of
the anti-dumping legislation of Korea at its meeting held in October 1986.
At that meeting questions had been asked by the representative of the
United States (ADP/M/18, paragraph 8) and subsequently written questions
had been submitted by the EEC (ADP/%/135) and Australia (ADP/W/137).
Replies by Korea to those questions had been circulated in documents
ADP/W/145 and ADP/W/146, respectively.

35. The representative of the United States said that at the meeting held
in October 1986 her delegation had asked eome questions on the Korean
anti-dumping legislation; her delegation would submit those questions in
writing (see document ADP/W/149).

36. The representative of Kores said his delegation would like to reply to
the questions put by the United States in ADP/W/149 at a later stage. By
way of preliminary comment on these questions he saild that Article 4-4(2)
of the Presidential Decree of the Customs Act contained the definition of
the term “any person having an interest in the domestic industry" as useu
in Article 10(2) of the Customs Act. His Government intended to review
the provisions in the Korean anti-dumping legislation regarding the
cefinition of the categories of persoms entitled to file an anti-dumping
duty petition and was prepared to discuss this matter bilaterally with any
party wishing to de so.

37. The representative of Australia thanked the delegation of Korea for
the replies it had provided to the questions put by Australia. His
delegetion needed some more time to study these replies and he therefore
requested that the Korean anti~dumping legislation be kept on the agenda of
the Committee.




ADP/M/19
Page 9

38, The Chairman concluded by saying that the Committee would revert to
tile anti-dumping legislation of Korea at 1ts next meeting.

(v) Pakistan (Ordinance No. 111 of 1983, document ADP/1/Add.24)

39. The thairman recalled that the Committee had begun its examivation of
the anti-dumping legislation of Pakistan at its meeting in April 1986.
The Committee had continued this examination at its meeting held in
October 1986 on the basis of questicns which had been raiscd at the meeting
in April and written questions received from the United States (ADP/W/117),
Australia (ADP/W/120) and the EEC (ADP/W/124). At the meeting held in
Octoher 1986 the representative of Pakistan had replied to some of the
questions raised (ADP/M/18, paragraphs 13-22) and he had indicated he would
revert to the remaining questioms at a later stage.

40, The representative of Pakistan said his delegation was not in a
position to provide additional replies at this meeting and he therefore
requested that the Committee revert to the anti~dumping legislation of
Pakistan at its next meeting. He also informed the Committee that his
Government had not vet adopted rules to implement the Ordinance and that sco
far no anti-dumping measures had been applied by his country.

41, The Chalrman said the Committee would revert te the anti-dumping
legislation of Pakistan at its next meeting,

(vi) 1India (The Customs Tariff (Sfecond Amendment) Act of 1982 and the
related Customs Tariff Rules of 1985, document ADP/1/Add.25 and
Corr.1)

42, The Chairman recalled that at its meeting in April 1966 the Committee
had begun to examine the anti-dumping law and regulations of 1lmdia. The
Committee had continued its erawination of the Indian legislation at its
meeting held in October 1986 on the basis of questions raised at the
meeting in April and written questions submitted by the United States
(ADP/W/18), Australia (ADP/W/120) and the EEC (ADP/W/121). The replies by
the Indian delegatior had been reproduced in ADP/M/18, paragraphs 26-32.
Some delegations had expressed thelr concern about particular aspects of
the Indian anti-dumping legislation, e.g. the definition of domestic
industry and the criteria and procedures government the application of
provisional measures (ADP/M/18, paragraplis 32 and 35).

43, With respect to a question ralsed at previous meetings on the
procedures for the application of provisicnal anti-dumping measures, the
representative of India said his Governmemt did wnot intend to apply
provisional measures without giving the exporters concerned an opportunity
to comment and that it intended to comply with the relevant provisions of
the Agreement in this respect.

44, The representative of the EEC requested further clarification of ome
of the replies provided by the representative of India at the meeting held
in October 1986 to questions submitted by the EEC (ADP/M/18, paragraph 29).



ADP/M/19
Page 10

ir one of these replies the representative of India had referred to
Section 13 of the Customs Tariff Rules which provided for the application
of provisional measures after a preliminary determination of dumping and,
where applicable, injury. He asked vwhat was meant in this context by the
term "where applicable".

45. The representative of the Uniied States said it had been the
understanding of her delegation that the indian delegation would seek more
informaticn on a nwmber of issues raised at previous meetings. Her
delegation was still not completely satisfied and in view of the fact that
further written information frem the Indian delegation did not seem to be
forthcoming she requested some more time to study the replies given by the
Indian representative at the meeting held in October 1986.

46. The Committee agreed to revert to the legislation of India at the next
meeting and the Chairman invited the delegatior of India to submit written
replies prior to that meeting.

(vii) Sweden (Ordinance on Dumping and Subsidy investigations of
5 September 1985, document ADP/1/Add.2/Suppl.l)

47, The Chairman said the Committee had started its examination of the
Swedish Ordinance on Dumping and Subsidy Investigations at its meeting in
April 1986, Subsequently written questions on this Ordinance had been
received from the United States (ADP/W/119) and the EEC (ADP/W/122). At
the meeting of the Committee in October 1986 the delegation of Sweden had
replied in writing to those questions (ADP/W/131). Since the EEC had
indicated 3% that meeting that it would like some more time to reflect on
the answers provided by Sweden the Committee had agreea to revert to the
Ordinance at its next regular meeting. Furthermore, in the course of the
Committee's discussion at the October meeting of the anti-dumping
investigation conducted by Sweden on wood particle board from Poland and
Czechoslovakia the representative of Poland had expressed the wish that the
Ordinance be kept on the agenda of the Committee (ADIP/M/18, paragraph 61).

48. The representative of Foland recalled that at the October meeting she
had raised a number of questions on the Swedish anti-dumping procedures in
cornection with the anti-dumping investigaticn conducted by Sweden with
respect to impcrts of wood particle board from Poland (ADP/M/18,
paragraph 61). She pointed out that when the investigation had been
opened (15 August 1985) mno information on the Swedish anti-dumping
procedures had been available as the Ordinance had been issued only on

5 September 1985, Consequently, the Pclish exporter involved had been
unable to obtain information about the legal procedures and criteria which
would be applied by the Swedish authorities. Nevertheless she expressed
the appreciation of her authorities for the detajled information which had
been provided in the meantime by Sweden in document ALP/%/131 and in
bilateral discussicns. However, her authorities were still concerned
about certain aspects of the Swedish anti-dumping legislation. In this
regard she mentioned 1n particular the question of the types of
anti-dumping duties which could be applied under the Swedish legislation




ADP/M/19
Page 11

(variable duties, ad valorem duties and specific duties). She referred to
the reply by Sweden in document ADP/W/121 to a question put by the
United State. on this issue and requested the Swedish delegation to explain
how and when variable duties would be applied as anti-dumping duties and
whether the Swedish authorities hacd adopted specific regulations for the
application of the three basic types of duties.

49, The representative of Sweden said that, as explained in the written
reply by Sweden to a questicn put by the United States (ADP/W/131, page 2)
the Swedist anti-dumping legislation provided for three possible types of
anti-dunping duties: variable duties, ad_valorem duties and specific
duties. The choice cf one of these methods would depend upon the
particular circumstances of each case. Regarding the system of variable
duties he uoted that one disadvantage of this system was that it was
difficult to administer.

50. The representative of Poland saild that the answer given by the Swedish
representative had not added anything new to the information provided on
this issue in document ADP/W/131.

51, The representative of the Unired States also wondered how variable
duties could operate as anti-dumping duties and asked the Swedish
delegation to give a specific example of such a case.

52. The representative of Sweden said that so far his Government had never
applied variable duties as anti-dumping duties. He would seek more
information from his authorities with respect to the technical details of
the possible use of variable duties as anti-dumping duties.

53. The representative of the EEC said that, where appropriate,
anti~-dumping duties applied by the EEC took the form of variable duties.
The amount of the variable duty was determined as the difference hetween a
threshold price, which was a price equal to or less than the normal value
expressed on & c.1.f. Community fromtier basis, and the import price of the
product ip questiom.

S4. The Chairman said the Committee had concluded Jts examination of the
Swedish anti-dumping legislation.

(viil) Legislation of other_ parties

55. The representative of Czechoslovakia drew the attention of the
Coumittee to certain Canadian practices which in the view of his
authorities were iInconsistent with the relevant provisions of the
Agreement, ond in particular with Article 8:1, Article 9:1 and
Article 11:1. The first issue raised by the representative of
Czechoslovakia concerned an anti-dumping proceeding involving imports of
carbon and alloy steel plates from various countries including
Czechoslovakia. in this case anti-dumping duties had been imposed in
1983. Since the initial operative date of these duties the Canadian
authorities had increased the duty applicable to imports from




ADP/M/19
Page 12

Czechoslovakia three times by adjusting the normal value on the basis of
prices in, successiv2ly, the United Kingdom, the Federal Republic of
Germany and Relgium. These increases of the anti-dumping duty had taken
place even though since the intreoduction of the duty in 1983 only
negligible quantities of carbon and alloy steel plates could be imported
from Czechoslovakia into Canada. It followed from Ariicle 1 and
Article 9:1 of the Agreement that anti-dumping duties could be applied only
where a causal link had been established between a margin of dumping and
injury to a domestic irdusiry. He considered that automatic increases of
duties, each time based on normal values in different countries, without an
Investigation of the injury aspect and the causal link between the margin
of dumping and the injury, and without there heing an opportunity for the
exporier to defend his interests, were in violation of the basic principles
of the Agreement. Since the Canadjan authorities applied similar
practices in other cases, his Government intended to invite the Canadian
authorities for bilateral consultations on this issue in the near future.
A second point raised by the representative of Crzechoslovakia was that in
the Canadian anti-dumping practice anti-dumping duties corresponded to the
full margin of dumping although Article 8:1 of the Agreement provided that
it was desirable that an anti-dumping duty be less than this margin 1f such
lesser duty would be sufficient to remove the injury to the domestic
industry. Finally, he said that in cases where, after carrying out an
administrative review, the Canadian authovities had found a higher margin
of dumping, this led to an adjustment of the amount of the duty which was
applied retroactively. He considered that this type of retroactive
adjustment of anti-dumping duties was inconsistent with Article 11:1 of the
Agreement and that it alsc had no basis in the Canadian anti-dumping
legislation.

56. The representative of Cenada said his authorities conducted periodic
administrative reviews of existing anti-dumping measures in order to ensure
that the pormal value of the product remained consistent with current
market conditions. Other import administrations followed similar
procedures. Exports to Canada priced at the level of the normal value
were not subject to anti-dumping duties and it was therefore important to
keep the normal value up to date in order to determine whether amy
anti-dumping duty was payable at the time of importation. In cases
involving imports from non-market economies, nermal value was based on
prevailing market conditions In a surrogate market-economy country. In
the most recent review of the carbon and alloy steel plate case referred to
by the representative of Czechoslovakia a new surrcgate country had been
chosen after consultations with Czechoslovakia and the normal value which
had resulted had been lower than would have been the case had the previous
surrogate country continued to be used. The fact that the normal value
had pericdically increased over time reflected changes in the market
conditions in the surrogate country; in the past two years an important
factor ha- also been the appreciation of European currencies against the
Canadian dollar. 1f the exporter from Czechoslovakia felt that, as a
result of the small quantities of imports from Czechoslovakia, these
imports were nc longer causing material injury in Canada, the exporter
should request the Canadian Import Tribunal to conduct & review of the



ADP/M/19
Page 13

injury finding. If, as a result of such a review, the Tribunal were
satisfied that imports from Czechoslovakia were no longer causing injury,
it would amend the finding to exclude 1mports from Czechoslovakia. He
added that his Government was prepared to consult with Czechoslevakia at
any time regarding this matter.

57. The Committee took note of the statements made by the representatives
of Czechoslovakia and Canada.

58. The representative of Canada said that some of the proposed amendments
to the anti-dumping legislation presently under conslideration im the
Congress of the United States might have significant implications for the
implementation of the Agreement and, if enccted, could negatively impact on
the Uruguay Round of Multilateral Trade Negotiations. 1In this respect he
mentioned in particular the proposals relating to diversiomary input
dumping and the revitalization of the Anti-Dumping Act of 1916. With
regpect to the proposed provisions vegarding diversionary input dumping he
said that although his authorities recognized that problems existed in this
area, they considered that these problems should be resolved in a
multilateral framework, On the proposed changes te the Anti-Dumping Act
of 1916 which would make it easier for domestic industries in the
United States to obtain, through the courts, damages for the effects of
injurious dumping, he said that the General Agreement envisaged the use of
only one remedy to deal with injurious dumping, i.e. an anti-dumping duty.
He further referred to the proposed introduction of mandatory cumulative
injury assessment "across the Codes" and noted that such cumulation would
not always be appropriate. This mandatory eross-statute cumulation could
result in the application of iInappropriate remedies in Instances where both
anti-dumping and countervailing duties would be applied while only one such
duty would be justified. lie hoped the delegation of the United Stsates
would convey to the appropriate authorities in the United States the
expression of the concerns of the Canadian Government :egarding these
proposals.

59. The representative of Singapore also referred te the anti-dumping
provisions in the draft legislation before the United States Congress.
Some of these provisions, 1f enacted, would result in a unilateral
interpretation and implementation of the Agreement and would be
inconsistent with the international obligations of the United States.
Furthermore, these provisions would result in protectionist and arbitrary
rules which would penalize exporters to the United States. Waile she
recognized that the proposals before the United States Congress were still
draft legislation she pointed to the dangers which could result if these
proposals were to become law, She also noted that many c¢I the proposed
changes were already influencing the anti-dumping practice of the
United States and other parties. She wurged the United States
administration and Congress to play a comstructive rdle in the development
of United States trade policy and trade law by taking into account the
views expressed in the Committee, She hoped ihe delegation of the
United States would comvey these concerns to its authorities so that any
trade legislation emerging from the Congress would be comsistent with the
international obligations of the United States under the General Agreement
and the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of the General Agreement.




ADP/M/19
Page 14

60. The representative of Singapore noted the following six provisions in
the proposed amendments of the United States anti-dumping law which were of
serious concern to her delegation: dilversiomary input dumping, definition
of domestic industry, mandatory imitistion of anti-dumping investigations
against "multiple offenders", criteria to determine the existence of
(threat of) injury, private anti-dumping remedies, and the anti-
circumvention provisions.

(i, diversicnary input dumping

The representative of Singapore said that under the proposed amendment
dealing with situations of diversionary input dumping a foreign exporter
would be deemed to have dumped when any material or component incorporated
into the merchandise under investigation was purchased by the producer of
such merchandise at a price less than fair value. This proposal was
inconsistent with Article VI of the General Agreement and with the
provisions of the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of the General
Agreement which defined dumping as the difference between the normal value
and export price of like products. Inputs used in the production of an
experted finished product were not like the exported fimished product.
Any anti-dumping action against finished products because of the
incorporation into those products of inputs alleged to have been dumped in
a third country market would, consequently, be inconsistent with the
General Agreement and with the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of
the General Agreement. She further noted that the proposal to apply
anti~-dumping measures in cases of diversionary input dumping also refuted
the principle of free competition by denying producers the right to obtain
their components from the most competitive source of supply. The proposal
also shifted the onus to the producers of the finished product to ensure
that the inputs incorporated in the finished product would not be dumped.

(i1) definicion of domestic industry

The represen  ative of Singapore said the proposal to amend the
definition of domestic industry to include producers of a raw agricultural
product as part of the domestic industry producing the processed
agricultural product constituted an arbitrary interpretation of the
definition of domestic industry. This could be inconsistent with the
Agreement. Furthermore, the rules of the Agreement gave standing to file
complaints only tc those producers of the product which was like the
product under 1investigaticm. The proposed amendment relating to the
standing of agricultural processors to file a petition would therefore
viclate the Agreement.

(112) mandatory initiation_ of anti-dumping investigatioms against
multiple offenders

The repiesentative of Singapore vecalled that the Agreement provided
that an anti-dumping investigation could be opened only if there was
sufficlent evldence of the existence of dumping, injury ard a causal link
betwzen the dwmping and injury. The proposed provision for a mandatory




Ar?/M/19
Page 15

initiation of investigations against “"multiple offenders" would violate
this requirement. The Agreement did not provide for an automatic
initiation of investigations. Each case had to be dealt with
independently in accord.nce with the provisions in the Agreement relating
to the iInitiation of anti-dumping investigations.

(iv) criceria to determine the existence of (threat of) injury

With respect to the proposed mew criteria to determin: the existence
of (tkreat of) injury, the representative of Singapore said these proposals
constituted a unilateral expansion of the criteria laid down in the
Agreement. In this comnection she noted that the new criteria for
determining the existence of a threat of imjury included the extent to
which foreign werchandise had been dumped omn third country markets. She
considered that a finding of dumping in a third country was not relevant in
the context of a determination whether a threat of injury existed in the
United States market. This new criterion presumed that imports posed a
threat of injury on the basis of conditions in third country markets.
This was inconsistent with the Agreement which provided that anti-dumping
duties could not be imposed without a prior determination of dumping,
injury and the existence of a causal link between dvmped imports and
injury. On the proposal for cumulative injury assessment "across the
codes" she said such cumulation was inconsistent with the Agreement. The
Agreement provided for a remedy in case of injury caused by dumped imports
which was a situation distinct and separate from the situation where, under
the Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Mezsures, measures could be
taken in case of injury caused by subsidized imports. The Agreement
nowhere allowed or permitted the cumulation of the effects of subsidized
and dumped imports for the purpose of a determination of the existence of a
threat of material injury.

(v) private anf:i-dumping remedies

The representative of Singapore said that a private right of action
for damages caused by dumping was neither foreseen in the General Agreement
not in the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of the General
Agreement which provided for compensatory duties to offset the margin of
dunping as the exclusive anti-dumping remedy.

{vi) anti-cizcumvention provisions

The representative of Singapore said these provisions would extend am
anti-dumping action on a particular end product from a particular source to
a like product assembled in the United States or im a thizd country, using
components imported from the aforementioned source via a related party.
These provisions presumed the existence of dumping without due process
prov 1 for im the Agreement. She reiterated that anti-dumping duties
cou: aot be imposed without a prior determination of dumping, injury and
the existence of a causal link between the specific dumped imports and
material injury.



ADP/M/19
Page 16

&1, 1The representative of the EEC said he shared the concerns expressed by
Canada and Singapeore regardlng recently proposed amendments to the
anti-dumping law cof the United States. In this respect he mentioned the
proposed provisions dealing with input dumping, revitalization of the
Anti-Dumping Act of 1916, private remedies, mltiple offenders, mandatory
cross-cumulatior, definition of domestic industry. The inconsistency of
those provisions with the Code was evident. He recognized that the
United States Government had underlined with the Congress the need to
cbserve the international rules. However, the outcome of the discussions
in Congress was uncertain and he therefore requested the United States
delegation to convey to Congress the concerns of his delegation. The
proposed provisions were iInconsistent with the Code and could give rise to
retaliztory measures by other parties. They would also create ths danger
of the adoption of mirror-legislation by other parties.

62, The representatives of Romania, Yugoslavia, Australia, Hong Kong,
Switzerland, Japan, Korea, Egypt “and Brazil said they shared the concerns
expressed by the previous speakers rezarding the proposed changes to the

anti-dumping law of the United States.

63. The representative of the United States said he would convey to his
authorities the views expressed by the teprescntatives of Canads,
Singapore, the EEC, Romavla, Yugoslavia, Australia, Hong Kong, ‘witzerland,
Japan, Korea, Egypt and Brazil., He emphasized that the prcposals referred
to were still pending in the United States Congress. If and when a trade
bill would be enacted and implemented the United States would inform the
Committee of any changes in its anti-dumping law relevant to the Agreement.
He further noted that the preceding discussion had been possible because of
the complete transparency cof the legislative procvess in the United States;
he looked forward to the day when the legislztive processes of other
parties would be equally transparent.

64, The Committee took note of the statements made regarding the proposed
anendments to the anti-dumping jaw of the United States.

65. The represertetive of Australia recalled that at previcus meetings his
delegatior had informed the Committee that the Australian authorities were
considering a report concerning a review of the Australian anti-dumping law
and procedures (see ADP/M/17, paragraph 33 and ADP/M/16, paragraphs 49 and
50). With respect to the recommendations made in the report the
Auvstralian Government had recently decided: (a) to establish an
Anti-Dumping Authority te make recommendations to the Minister on
anti-dumping action; (b) to endorse the recommendation in the report that
there should be no "rational interest" clause; (¢) to retain
Subsection 5(9) of the Custome Tariff (Anti-Dumping) Act of 1975 which
prohibited the determination of normal values on the basis of sales made at
a loss, and (d) to introduce a provision for the expiration of anti-dumping
measures after three years. The necessary legislative proposals to effect
these decisions had noc yet been intreduced inte the Australian Parliament.
Details of the awendrents to the Australian leglslation resulting from
these decisions would be supplied to the Commitrtee as soon as the
legislative proposals were avallable.



ADP/M/19
Page 17

646. The Committee took mnote of the information provided by the
representative of Australia.

67. The Chailrman said the Committee would maintain on its agenda the item
"legislation of other parties" in order to afford the parties the
opportunity to revert to particular aspects of anti-dumping laws and
regulations of other parties.

68. The Chairman brought to the attention of the Committee a compendium of
anti-dumping and countervailing duty laws and regulations which bsd just
been published by the secretariat (see document L/6174).

C. Semi-annual reports of anti-dumping actions taken within the period
1 July-31 December 1986 1986 (ADP/32 and addenda)

69. The Chairman said document ADP/32/Add.l listed the parties who had
notified that they had not takev any anti-dumping action during the period
1 July-31 December 1986: Avstria, PBrazil, Czechoslovakia, Egypt, Finland,
Hong Kong, Hungary, India, Japan, Norway, Pakistan, Poland, Rowmania,
Singapore, Switzerland and Yugoslavia. Anti~-dumping actions had been
taken during this period and notified by Australia, Canada, the EEC, Korea,
Sweden and the United States. The semi-annual report of the United States
had been received very late and he urged the United States to submit future
semi-annual reports on time.

70. The Chairman recalled that at the October meeting the Committee had
adopted a revised standard form for the semi-annual report (ACF/31).

71. The Committee examined the semi-amnual reports im the order in which
they had been clrculated:

EEC (ADP/32/Add.2)

72. The represenfaiive of Yugeslavia voiced the concern of her authorities
regarding the large number of anti-dumping investigations in the EEC
invelving imperts from Yugoslavia. She also noted that in two cases,
concerning imports of electric motors and urea, the FEC authorities had
assessed injury on a cumulative basis. Thirdly, she requested an
explanation of the use of minimum impcrt prices in the EEC anti-dumping
investigations. Finally, she urged the EEC to take into consideration the
provisions of Article 13 of the Agreement when consldering the application
of anti~-dumping measures on imports from Yugoslavia and other developing
countries,

713. On the question of the number oif EEC anti~dumping investigations
affecting imports from Yugoslavia the repiesentative of the EEC said that
in ithe LEC anti~dumping Investigations were initiated exclusively upon
receipt by the Commisszion of a complaint lodged by the injured industry.
Whete such a complaint had been filed, the Commission was under a legal
obligation to open an Iinvestigation which it would conduct in full
conformity with the relevant provisions of the Agreement. Consequently,



ADP/M/19
Page 18

the number of investigations was determined by the number of complaints
filed. With respect to the practice of 2 cumulative injury assessment he
said this was a common practice in the EEC and in other countries which
applied anti-dumping measures. In response to tie question on the use of
minimum import prices he sald such prices were used where anti-dumping
duties took the form of variable .Mties. In such cases the minimum import
price was determined by (a) the ncrmal value iIn the exporting country
adjusted on a c¢.i.f. Community frontier basis, and (b) the iajury found to
exist in the Community. The minimum import price would be lower than the
normal value where such lower price was adequate to eliminate the injury.
In this respect he noted that in a number of cases invelving imports from
Yugoslavia, including the electric metors case, the minimum import prices
had been established at levels much lower than the rnormal values.
Regarding the imvestigation on imports of urea he said a provisional duty
had been imposed and that the investigation was still continuing. VWhile
the EEC made every effort to take into account the special situation of
developing countries in its anti-dumping practice, this did not mean it was
always possible to exempt developing countries from anti-dumping measures.
He believed this would be particularly difficult in the urea case because
this was a case where major difficulties existed im the world market.

74. The Committee took note of the statements made by the representatives
of Yugoslavia and the EEC.

Korea (ADP/32/Add.3)

75. The representative of the United States noted th~* im two cases listed
in ADP/32/A4dd.3 price undertakings had been agreed to and she asked whether
provisional measures had bheen applied in these cases prior to the
acceptance of the undertakings.

76. The representative of Korea said no provisional measures had been
taken in these two cases prior to the acceptance of the price undertsakings.

Australia (ADP/32/Add.4)

77. The representative of Czechoslovakia noted that in some cases listed
in the Australian semi-annual report no data had been provided on final
measures despite the fact that provisional measures, which could only
remain in force four months, had been introduced in August 1985. He
recalled that this issue had already been raised im the Committee but
considered the explanation provided by Australia was not completely
satisfactory. He requested the Australian delegation to provide
additional information on these cases. Furthermore, he wished to know at
what stage was the anti-dumping investigation of imports of passenger car
tyres from Czechoslovakia (ADP/32/Add.4, page 3). Provisional measures
had been imposed on 16 July 1986 but it was unclear whether these measures
were still in forcs or had beeun revoked. In this regard he reiterated
that under the Agreement provisional measures could remain in force for a
period of only four months.




ADP/M/19
Page 19

78. The representative of Australia said that following an affirmative
preliminary finding on a dumping complaint and if considered warranted to
prevent material injury to an Australian industry during the period of the
investigation, the Australian authorities could require an importer
entering goode for home consumption which were subject to investigation to
give a security in terms of Section 42 of the Customs Act. This was a
general provision in the Customs Act. Any security for the purposes of
the Customs Tariff (Anti-Dumping) Act could be in the form of a cash
deposit or a documentary security with a surety, at the option of the
importer. In each case the particular document was in terms which
cemplied with the provisions of Subsections 45(2) and (3) of the Customs
Act which cancelled the document, by statute, after four months from the
date of the security (or where the exporter of the goods requested an
extension, after a period not exceeding six months. The Customs Tariff
(Anti-Dumping) Act also contained provisions in Section 13 which prevented
the Minister from making a notice imposing anti-dumping duties on goods
already entered for home consumption for which security had been taken but
which security had lapsed in accordance with the statute. These
provisions ensured that any security action for anti-dumping purposes would
be in strict conformity with Austraiia‘'s obligations under the Agreement.

79. In reply to the question put by the representative of Czechoslovakia
on the investigation of passenger car tyres from Czechoslovakia, the
representative of Australia said this investigation had been lengthy and
wide-ranging. The investigation had just been completed and the
Australian Customs Service was drafting its report to the Minister on this
case.

80. The representative of Czechoslovakia sald it was still not clear to
him whether the provisional measures imposed im July 1986 in the context of
the investigating of passenger car tyres were still in force.

81. The representative of Australia said that when the products referred
to were imported into Ausiralia a bond had to be filed at the level of the
dumping margin tentatively determined in the preliminary stage of the
investigation.

82. The Committee took mote of the statements made by the representatives
of Czechoslovakia and Australia.

Canada (ADP/32/Add.5)

83. No comments were made on this report.
Sweden (ADP/32/Add.6)

84. No comments were made on this report.

United States (ADP/32/Add.7)

85. The representative of Brazil saild the semi-annual report of the
United States had been submitted only very recently, his delegation had a



ADP/M/19
Page 20

number of comments to make on this report but he preferred to make these
comments at a future meeting of the Committee.

86. The Chairman said the Committee would revert to the semi-annual report
submitted by the United States at its next meeting,

D. Reports on all preliminary or final anti-dumping actions (ADP/W/134
and Corr.l, 136, 141, 142 and 143)

87. The Chairman said that reports under this procedure had been received
from Australia, Canada and the EEC. Unfortunately, the United States had
not submitted reports under this procedure since September 1986.

88. The representative of the United States said his delegation would take
the necessary measures to ensure that in the future reports on anti-dumping
actions by the United States would be submitted in time.

89. The representative of Canada sald the finding on wooden clothespinms,
reported in ADP/W/134, had “been rescinded. He also said that in some
cases the actions notified by Canada under this procedure involved
administrative reviews. His delegation would take steps to ensure that in
the future only measures taken in the context of new investigations would
be notified.

90. The representative of Finland said his country had opened
investigations of imports of fibre board from Poland zud ski boots from
Czechoslovakia. The former investigation had been 1pitiated in
January 1987 and after preliminary findings had been made, provisional
measures had been imposed ir April 1987, The investigation of imports of
ski boots had been opemed at the end of May 1987. An English summary of
the relevant public notices would be sent to the secretariat in the near
future.

9)1. The Committee took note of the statements made.

E. Report of the Ad-Hoc Group on_the TImplementation of the Anti-Dumping
Code

(1) Draft _recommendation on input dumping

92. The Chairman recalled that at its meetings held in October 1985 and in
spril and October of 1986 the Committee had considered a draft
recommendation submitted by the Ad-iloc Group on the question of the
treatuent of imput dumping (ADP/W/83/Rev.2). A number of delegatioms, in
particular those of Hong Kong and the United States, had indicated ot those
meetings that they were not in a position to adopt this draft
recommendation and the Committee had therefore agreed to revert to this
issue at this meeting.

i s



-ADP/M/19
Page 21

93. The representative of liovng Kong said the position of his delegation on
this issue had not changed since the last meeting ¢f the Committee.

94, The representative of the United Stat+2s said her delegation remained
unable to accept the draft recommendation at this time.

95. The representative of Finland, speaking cn behalf of the Nordie
countries, regretted that the Committee had been unable to adopt the draft
recommendation on input dumping. He expressed the hope that parties who
were preparing legislation on the practice of input dumping would take into
consideration the contents of this draft recommendation.

96. The Committee teook note of the statements made.

(i1) Report by the Chairman on the work of the Group

97. The Chairman said that at the meeting of the Ad-Hoc Group held on

4 June 1987, the Group ha. discussed in detaill Working Papers on the use of
price undertakings in anti-dumping proceedings involving developing
=ntries and on the procedures for a revision of an undertaking. The
discussion of these two issues had made it clear that substantial
divergencies of views continued to exist regarding certain aspects of the
Working Papers and the view had been expressed in the Group that the Group
should have one full day for its meeting in October in order to arrive at a
consensus. It had also been suggested that prior to this meeting informal
consultations would be necessary to facilitate the Group's discussion at
the October meeting. The Chairman further said that the examination of a
Working Paper on the termination of undertakings which had also been on the
agenda of the Group for some time, had been deferred tc the October
meeting, With respect to the question of the definition of sale the Croup
had agreed that it would not be useful to continue to discuss this issue at
this point in time and that it would revert to it at one of its futvie
meetings. Finally, the Chairman informed the Committee that the Group had
not continued its discussion of the method of determining a constructed
value and of the question of the cumulative assessment of injury.

98. The representative of Romania said the Conmittee had decided that the
question of the use of price undertakings in anti-dumping proceedings
involving imports from developing countries should be a priority item in
the Group's work. However, two years of work on this issue in the Group
had made it clear that many delegations did not have the pelitieal will to
arrive at an understanding on thils issue. He expressed the hope that
those delegations would adopt a more co-operative attitude at the October
meeting and requested the Chairman to conduct informal consultations to
prepare that meeting.

9%, The Committee took note of the Report by the Chairman and of the
stateme..t made by the representative of Romania.



ADP/M/19
Page 22

F.  Other business

(1) United States - Anti-dumping duty investigation of fresh cut
flowers from various countries

100. The representative of Canada said that on 27 February 1987 the
United States International Trade Commicsion (USITC) had made its final
injury determination in anti-dumping and countervalling duty investigations
concerning certain fresh cut flowers from various countries, including
Canada. In making this determination the USITC had cumulated imports
within flower types. Imports of standard carnations from Canada had been
found injurious while imports of mini-carmations froa Canada had not been
found injurious. In making its determination the USITC had ruled out
exempting countries on de minimis grounds. The USITC had taken the view
that to apply a de minimis test would be Inconsistent with the legislative
intent of the Trade and Tariff Act of 1984, The representative of Canada
considered that this investigation showed that an inflexible application of
the cumulation principle could lead to perverse results. Imports into the
United States of standard and miniature carnations combined from Canada
amounted to no more than US$40,000 per year and accounted for less than
0.05 per cent of apparent consumption in the United states. Imports into
the United States ¢f standard carnations from Canada were considerably less
than US$40,000. Given the insignificant level of these imports from
Canada, it was difficult to see how these imports could, by any crlteria,
be causing or comtributing to material injury to the domestic industry in
the United States. The insignificant level of imports from Canada put
into question the consistency of the USITC determination with the relevant
provisl 1s of the General Agreement and of the Agreement on Implementation
of Article VI of the General Agreement.

101. The representative of the United States said the USITC cumulatively
assessed the price and volume effects of imports from more than ome country
only in those circumstances where such Imports had a collective effect on
the domestic industry. Those circumstances existed if the imperts in
question competed with each other and with like domestic products, if the
imports were reasonably coincident In time and if they were subject to
investigation. In the case involving fresh cut flowers from Camada the
USITC had considered those factors by looking only at flowers of the same
type from each country. It had found no significant quality or other
differences among imported flowers and between domestic and imported
flowers. Moreover, it had found a significant overlap in marketing areas.
fhe USITC had therefore concluded that it was appropriate to cumulatively
assess the effects of imported fresh cut flowers. Her delegation believed
that the combined effect of imports from small suppliers could cause injury
to a domestic industry and that cumulation therefore accorded with the
economic rezlity,

102. The observer for Colombla referred to an anti-dumping investigation

carried out by the United States with respect to imports of seven types of
flowers from Colombiz. Im this case a dumping margin of 3.52 per cent had
been established. However, subsequently this margin had been increused to




ADP/M/19
Page 23

4.4 per cent in the light of the final USITC injury determination. On
this determination he said the USITC had deviated frem its usual practice
in that it had not cumulatively assessed the effects of the imports from
Colombia. He believed this refusal to cumulate was prejudicial to his
country. Regarding the determination of dumping he said the United States
authorities had used a sample to determine the United States price of the
imported flowers; this sample, however, was not representative «i the sale
of Colombian flowers in the United States. Furthermnre, in making the
dumping determination the United States authorities had failed to take into
consideration the perishability of flowers. His delegation reserved the
right to request bilateral consultations with the United States on this
matter under Article ¥XIT of the General Agreement.

163. The vepresentative of the United States said that in the final injury
determination made by the USITC in the context of the anti-dumping duty
investigation of fresk cut flowers from Colombiz the USIUC had applied the
cumulation principle with respect to standard carmatioms, standard
chrysanthemums and pompor chrysanthemums. The USITC had met cumulatively
assessed the effects of imports of astroemerie as there were no other
investigations pending with respect to this type of flowers. Regarding
the adjustment of the anti-dumping margin she said the margin mentioned In
the anti-dumping duty order was lower than the margin mentioned in the
final affirmative determination as a result of the finding of no injury by
the USITC with respect to certain products covered by that determimation.
Since the margins of dumping which had been found for those products had
been relatively low, the exclusion of those products frow the anti-duwping
duty order had resulted in an increase of the average dumping margin. She
further said that her authorities had been well aware of the great number
of Colombian exporters and of the perishability of the products concerned.
In order tc determine the companies which had to be investigated & random
sample had been used; this was a well-recognized economic tool.
Furthermore, wmonthly-weighted averages had been used to account for the
perishability of the products both with respect to sales in the home market
and export sales in the United States.

104, The representative of HRong Kong recalled that his delegation had
always opposed the practice of cumulating imports from more than one
country for the purpose of making an injury determination. His delegation
considered that this practice was inconsistent with Article 5:3 of the
Agreement. The case referred to by the representative cf Canada and the
observer for Colombia was a good example of how this practice could be used
to the disadvantage of exporters.

205, The representative if Canada said his deley::ion might wish to revert
to the fresh cut flowers case at the mext weeting of the Committee.

106, The Committee took note of the statements made.




ADP/M/19
Page 24

(i1) United States - Review and revocation of outstanding
anti-dumping measures

107. The representative of Canada raised some questions regarding the
procedures in the United States for review amd revocaition of existing
anti-dumping measures. Under current procedures in the United States it
took a minimum of two years tc reflect major changes in margins of dumping.
Although over-payments were reimbursed those piccedures nonetheless imposed
an unnecessary burden on exporters. He asked whether the United States
intended tc review its anti-dumping duty review procedures with a view to
permii quick revisions of anti-aumping duty orders. If this was not the
case, he would urge the United States te doc so. In addition he noted that
there were many longstanding anti-dumping duty orders in effect in the
United States. Many countries had included 1in their anti-dumping
legislation "sunset" clauses to ensure neriodic reviews of tie reed for the
continued application of anti-dumping measures. Under the Canadian
anti-dumping law av injury finding lapsed after five years unless a review
by the Canadian Import Tribunal had led to the conclusicn that a finding
should be continued, However, the United States anti-dumping legislation
did not contain a similar clause. ile asked whether plans existed in the
United States to introduce this type of clause; if this was not the case,
he urged the United States to do so.

108. The representative of the Urited States said the United States
anti-dumping duty law and regulations previded for annual reviews of
anti-dumping duty orders upon request. Such a request could be made on
the anniversary date of the order. The first opportunity to request a
review occurred one year after the order took effect. This first review
might be completed at the end of the second year in which the order was in
effect. This was the only situation in which it took two years to review
an order. She added that for administrative reasons it was unfeasible to
conduct were than one review per year. Regarding longstanding
anti-dumping measures she said producers could use the abuve-mentioned
procedure and ask for a review; if such a review resulted in a finding
that the producers were no longer dumping no duties would be collected.
In any case, overpayments were relmbursed with int:srest. Finally, she
said that the United States had certain informal procedures for the
revocation of anti-dumping measures. As shown by the semi-amnual reports
submitted by the United States, there were always some revocations of
anti~-dumping measures.

109, The representative of Canada recognized that under the review
procedures described by the representative of the United States, exporters
who would be found to be nc longer dumping could be exempted from the
payment of anti-dumping duties. However, the point he had been trying to
make was that there should be a review cof the necessity of the anti-dumping
duty order ite-lf,

110. The representative of the United States said that Section 751(b) of
the Tariff Act of 1930, allewing for a review of an anti-dunping duty order
if warranted by changed circumstances, erabled the United States




ADP/M/19
Page 25

authorities to review the need for the continued application of an
anti-dumping duty order. The change in circumstances which could warrant
this type of review could relate either to the amount of dumping or to the
question whether there was still injury.

111. The Committee toock note of the statements made by the representatives
of Canada and the Ynited States.

(1ii) Seminar on anti-dumping procedures held in Belgrade

112. The representative of Yugoslavia said that a seminar on anti-dumping
procedures had been hald in Belgrade from 9-12 March 1987, She thanked
the experts from the United States, the EFC and the GAlT secretariat for
theilr contributions to the success of this geminar.

(iv) Uruguay Round Negotiating Group on MTN Agreements and
Arrazngements - Proposal submitted by Korea

113. The representative of Korea brought to the attention of the Committee
a propuosal submitted by his delegation to the Negotiating Group on MTN
Agreements and Arrangements regarding possible improvements of the
Agreement (document MIN.GNG/NG8/W/3 of 20 May 1987). He considered that,
while this proposal should be examined in the Negotiating Group, there was
a need for co-ordination and close co-operation between the Committee and
the Negotiating Group.

114, The Chairman said the representative cf Korea had raised an important
issue and he invited the parties to reflect on the relationship between the
work done iIn the Committee and in the Ad-Hoc Group and the work done in the
Negotiating Group. In this regard he also referred to the discussion
which had taken place in the Negotiating Group on MIN Agreements and
Arrangements regarding the relaticnship between the Negetiating Group and
the MTN Code Committees (see document MTN.GNG/NG8/2). If necessary, the
Committee would revert to this issue at its next meeting.

G. Date of mext regular meeting

115. The Chairman saild that, in accordance with a decision taken by the
Committee at its meeting held in April 981, the next regular meeting
should take place in the week of 26 October 1987, However, he would
consider the possibility of holding this meeting in conjunction with one of
the autumn meetings of the Uruguay Round Negotiating Group on Subsidies and
Countervailing Measures.




